
 

 
 

For a meeting of the 

COUNCIL 
to be held on 

THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2011 
at 

2.00 PM 
in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S 
HILL, GRANTHAM 

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    
 
Members of the Council are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed below. 
 
1. PUBLIC OPEN FORUM 

 
 The public open forum will commence at 2.00 p.m. and the following 

formal business of the Council will commence at 2.30 p.m. or whenever 
the public open forum ends, if earlier. 

  
2. YOUNG ENTERPRISE – CLICHÉ 

 
 The Young Enterprise group ‘Cliché’ from Kesteven and Grantham Girls’ 

School will give a presentation to the Council. 
  
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 Members are asked to declare any interests in matters for consideration at 

the meeting. 
  
5. MINUTES FROM 7 JULY 2011 

 
  (Enclosure) 

  
6. COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS) 

 
  (Enclosure) 

 
                                  

 

AGENDA 

 



  
7. BROADBAND DELIVERY UK (BDUK) 

 
 A presentation by Lincolnshire County Council. 
  
8. SITE ALLOCATION AND POLICIES AND GRANTHAM AREA ACTION 

PLAN - DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS PUBLICATION AND 
SUBMISSION TO THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
 

  (Enclosure) 
  
Please note that due to the size of this report’s appendices they are 

available electronically via the Council’s website at 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk – click the ‘Your Council and Democracy’ link, 

then ‘Agendas, Minutes and Reports’. 
 
9. QUESTIONS WITHOUT DISCUSSION 

 
 To note the list of questions asked under Council procedure rule 11.1 as 

circulated at the start of the meeting and their reference to the relevant 
Policy Development Group. 

  
10. NOTICES OF MOTION  GIVEN UNDER COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 

12: 
 

 1) From Councillor Alan Davidson 
 

The Leader of the Council and the other Executive Portfolio 
holders must be accountable, both to other members of South 

Kesteven District Council, and to the people of South Kesteven 
as a whole. Therefore, a period of 30 minutes shall be set 

aside near the beginning of all full meetings of the Council for 
elected members to ask questions of the Leader of the Council 
and Executive Portfolio holders. 

  
PLEASE NOTE: 
 
The deadline for notices of motion for the next Council meeting on Thursday 20 
October 2011 is: 2 p.m. on Friday 7 October 2011. 
 
 



1 

 
 

PRESENT 
Councillor Michael Cook Chairman 

  
Councillor Bob Adams 

Councillor Mark Ashberry 
Councillor Ray Auger 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 

Councillor Pam Bosworth 
Councillor Robert Broughton 

Councillor Terl Bryant 
Councillor Paul Carpenter 
Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright 

Councillor Ibis Channell 
Councillor George Chivers 

Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Paul Cosham 
Councillor Nick Craft 

Councillor Alan Davidson 
Councillor Phil Dilks 

Councillor Reginald Howard 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-
Brown 

Councillor Michael King 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan 

Councillor David Nalson 
Councillor Mrs. Linda Neal 
Councillor Alan Parkin 

Councillor Helen Powell 
Councillor Nick Robins 

 

Councillor Graddon Rowlands 

Councillor Bob Russell 
Councillor Bob Sampson 
Councillor Susan Sandall 

Councillor Bob Sandall 
Councillor Ian Selby 

Councillor Rob Shorrock 
Councillor John Smith 
Councillor Jacky Smith 

Councillor Mrs Judy Smith 
Councillor Peter Stephens 

Councillor Judy Stevens 
Councillor Ian Stokes 
Councillor Adam Stokes 

Councillor Brenda A Sumner 
Councillor Mrs Jean Taylor 

Councillor Mike Taylor 
Councillor Jeff Thompson 
Councillor Frank Turner 

Councillor Bruce Wells 
Councillor Paul Wood 

Councillor Rosemary H Woolley 
Councillor Raymond Wootten 
Councillor Debbie Wren 

 

OFFICERS OFFICERS 
 

Chief Executive (Beverly Agass) 
Strategic Director (Tracey Blackwell) 

Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
(Lucy Youles) 

Head of Finance (Richard Wyles) 
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo 

Toomey) 
 

 

MINUTES 
COUNCIL 
THURSDAY, 7 JULY 2011 

2.00 PM 
 

 

Agenda Item 5



 

2 

 
 

The Chairman welcomed Councillors Auger, Dilks and Stevens following their 
election to Deeping St. James Ward at a by-election held on 23 June 2011. 

 
16. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Bevan, Higgs, Jock 

Kerr, Vic Kerr, Nicholson, Scott and Wilkins. 
  

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 Councillors Dilks, Stevens and Auger each declared a personal interest in 
agenda item 9, ‘representatives on outside bodies’ (Deeping St. James 

United Charities), as they were all trustees of the organisation. 
  

18. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 MAY 2011 

 

 Subject to the following amendments, the minutes of the meeting held on 
19 May 2011 were agreed as a correct record: 

 
• Pages 14 and 16 – the appointment to the Local Government 

Association (Rural Commission) should be amended from Councillor 
Wootten to Councillor Wren. 

• Pages 14 and 16 – the appoint to the Thomas Truesdale Hospital 

should be amended from Councillor Bob Sandall to Councillor Sumner 
• Pages 14 and 16 – while Councillor Bryant was appointed to the 

Safeguarding Children’s Board, no seat was allocated for the Council 
• Page 3, paragraph 2 should be amended to read that the position of 

Vice-Chairman “should not be seen as a politically based 
appointment.” 

  

19. COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS) 

 

 A list of the Chairman’s engagements was circulated with the agenda. 

Councillor Cook informed members that he regrettably had to send 
apologies for the Lincolnshire Army Cadet Force National Athletics 
Competition on 11 June 2011, as he was unable to attend. Members noted 

the list of engagements. There were no other communications. 
  

20. STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 

 

 Mr Chris Holtom, the independent Chairman of South Kesteven District 
Council’s Standards Committee presented report number LDS027. He 

summarised the work undertaken by the Committee during 2010/11. 15 
complaints were received, of those 10 were assessed for no further action 

and five were referred for investigation. A breach of the code was found in 
two cases and in two no breach was found. The hearing for the fifth case 
was pending. 

 



 

3 

The Standards Committee were there to promote fairness and 
transparency. Mr Holtom proceeded to explain that the Localism Bill 

proposed the abolition of the standards regime with the eradication of the 
Standards Board for England and the model code of conduct. Despite this, 

district councils would have a duty to promote and maintain high standards 
of conduct. The council could choose to adopt a voluntary code of conduct 
but would have no responsibility to deal with complaints about parish and 

town councils. 
 

At the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 1 July 2011, the group 
had set up a working group, which, with the Council’s blessing proposed to 
consider possible arrangements for the future and present them to the 

Engagement Policy Development Group for their consideration and 
recommendation to Cabinet and Council. 

 
Mr Holtom commended all members of the committee, including Mr Fred 
Mann (also present), the committee’s independent vice-chairman. He 

complimented the Committee on its approach, considering issues in a 
practical, non-partisan way. The Chairman of the Standards Committee also 

thanked officers for their support. 
 

Members of the Council thanked the Chairman for his report and the 
Committee for their work. They also expressed their gratitude to the 
officers who supported the Committee. 

 
Those members who had sat on the committee commended its operation. 

Members asked whether the Council could adopt the Model Code of Conduct 
as a voluntary code and continue operating as it had, as the system 
seemed to work so effectively. It was confirmed that this was one option 

that could be considered. It was also suggested that if possible the district 
council should look to provide continuing support for parish and town 

councils. Debate also highlighted the potential reputational risks of having 
no standards framework and that it would be a criminal offence to 
intentionally fail to disclose an interest. 

 
A motion was proposed under Council Procedure Rule 13(iv) and seconded: 

 
“To refer the Localism Bill to the Engagement Committee for further 
discussion and explanation to develop a stakeholders conference to gain 

public input into what localism means in the district.” 
 

The proposer expressed concern that lots of different people were looking 
at bits of the Bill and suggested that it should receive consideration as a 
whole. He suggested the Engagement Policy Development Group (PDG) put 

together a stakeholder conference open to councillors and other 
stakeholders in the community, so they could review the contents of the Bill 

and how they think it could work around the district. 
 
The Chairman of the Engagement Policy Development Group stated that the 

review of standards arrangements and the Localism Bill formed a significant 



 

4 

part of the group’s work programme. In light of this information one 
member requested whether the mover, in accordance with Council 

Procedure Rule 13(vii) would withdraw the motion; he would not. During 
debate, it was suggested the motion was too prescriptive and pre-empted 

any work the PDG might do and had not considered budgetary provision. 
 
In summing up, the proposer welcomed that the PDG was going to look at 

the Bill and expressed the importance of engaging with the public. He 
suggested that any consultation could fit within existing consultation 

mechanisms, requiring no additional budgetary provision. On being put to 
the vote, the motion was lost. 

  
21. AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 

 

 Decision: 

 
The Council approves the recommendations made by the 
Constitution Committee at its meeting on 13 June 2011 as follows: 

 
The Constitution be amended 

  
1.1 At page 129 – part 4 – rule 13 (xvi) is amended to refer 

to rules 21.4 and 21.5. instead of rules 21.3 and 21.4. 
 
1.2 At page 140  - Rule  24.5 (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv)  is 

amended to refer to paragraph (i) and (ii) 
 

1.3 At page 178 – clause 7 is amended to refer to Council 
Procedure Rule 1.1(viii) and Council Procedure Rule 
1.1(xiii) is re-numbered (xi)  

 
1.4 To grant delegated authority to the Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services to make corrections to the 
constitution in respect of minor anomalies and 
inaccuracies and to report. 

 
1.5 To ensure the Members Allowance Scheme within the 

Constitution be updated to reflect the change in the 
mileage rate allowance for 2011/12 to 45p per business 
mile in line with Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs 

(HMRC) tax threshold rate from 9th May 2011 being the 
start of the current term of office. 

 
The Council had before them report number LDS028 of the Chairman of the 
Constitution Committee. The chairman of the Constitution Committee 

moved the recommendations in the report; these were seconded. Noting 
that one of the items was the increase in the business mileage allowance 

from 40p a mile to 45p a mile in line with Inland Revenue limits, one 
Member asked whether the wording could be sufficiently neutral to allow 
officers to alter the rate in line with the Inland Revenue limits. This was in 



 

5 

progress. On being put to the vote, the proposal was carried. 
  
22. ALLOCATION OF SEATS ON COMMITTEES AND POLICY 

DEVELOPMENT GROUPS 

 

 Decision: 
 
To make the following amendments to the membership of 

committees and policy development groups in accordance with the 
legislative provisions regarding political balance: 

 
• That Councillor Stevens replace Councillor Adams on the 

Development Control Committee 

• That Councillors Susan Sandall replace Councillor Higgs and 
that Councillor Vic Kerr fill the seat offered to the 

Independents by the Labour group on the Licensing 
Committee 

• That Councillor Bisnauthsing replace Councillor Shorrock on 

the Engagement Policy Development Group 
• That Councillor Auger replace Councillor Sumner on the 

Engagement Policy Development Group 

• That Councillor Auger replace Councillor Parkin on the 
Constitution Committee 

• That Councillor Davidson is the Labour Group’s appointment 
on the Scrutiny Committee 

• That Councillor Dilks is the Labour Group’s appointment on 

the Resources Policy Development Group 
 
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services summarised report number 

LDS029 on appointments to committees and policy development groups. 
She advised the Council that the Deeping St. James by-election on 23 June 

2011 had added one new member for each group. Notice had also been 
given that Councillor Bisnauthsing had aligned with the Independent Group. 
These changes affected the political balance on the Council’s committees 

and policy development groups. 
 

• Development Control Committee – Conservatives lose one seat to 
the Independent Group 

• Licensing Committee – Conservatives lose one seat to the 

Independent Group 
• Policy Development Groups – Labour lose one seat to the 

Independent Group [based on political balance on the combined 
number of PDG seats] 

 

The Leader of the Conservative group moved the removal of Councillor 
Higgs from Licensing Committee and Councillor Adams from Development 

Control Committee. She reported that Councillor Sumner would step-down 
from the Engagement PDG; Councillor Auger would fill this vacancy, and 
that Councillor Parkin would step-down from the Constitution Committee; 

this seat would also be filled by Councillor Auger. 



 

6 

 
The Labour Group Leader announced changes to the Labour group’s 

nominations: that Councillor Shorrock should stand down from the 
Engagement PDG in order to maintain political balance, Councillor Davidson 

would be the group’s representative on the Scrutiny Committee and that 
Councillor Dilks would take the group’s place on the Resources PDG. 
Councillor Selby formally offered the Labour group’s seat on the Licensing 

Committee to the Independent Group. 
 

The Leader of the Independents nominated Councillor Stevens to the 
Development Committee and Councillors Vic Kerr and Susan Sandall to the 
Licensing Committee. The Chairman agreed to a brief adjournment to allow 

the group to agree its nomination to the Engagement PDG. 
 

14:48-14:55 meeting adjourned 
 
Councillor Howard announced the group’s additional nomination to the 

Engagement PDG would be Councillor Bisnauthsing. 
 

The nominations were put to the vote and carried. 
  
23. REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

 

 Decision: 
 

1. To appoint Councillor Judy Stevens as the Council’s 
representative on Deeping St James United Charities 

2. To appoint Councillors Ray Auger and Reg Howard as the 

Council’s representatives on the Deepings Town Centre 
Partnership 

3. To appoint Councillors Ray Auger, Jacky Smith, Paul Cosham 
and Reg Howard to the Welland and Deeping Internal 
Drainage Board 

 
Report number LDS030 on the appointment of representatives on outside 

bodies by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services was before the 
Council. At its last meeting on 19 May 2011, the Council agreed to defer 
appointments to Deeping St James United Charities, Deepings Town Centre 

Partnership and the Welland and Deeping Internal Drainage Board, pending 
the outcome of the Deeping St. James by-election on 23 June 2011. 

 
Deeping St. James United Charities 
 

Mrs Carol Precey was proposed and seconded as the Council’s 
representative for Deeping St. James United Charities. The Council’s 

Constitution specified in Council Procedure Rule 1.2(iv) that the Council 
would “receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each committee or 
Policy Development Group and outside bodies”, however it was noted that 

Mrs Precey had served as the Council’s representative in the past. The 
chairman agreed to defer voting on this item for officers to research the 



 

7 

Council’s position. 
 

Deepings Town Centre Partnership 
 

Councillors Auger and Howard were proposed and seconded as 
representatives for the Deeping Town Centre Partnership. On being put to 
the vote, this was carried. 

 
Welland and Deeping Internal Drainage Board 

 
Six nominations were received to fill four seats on the Welland and Deeping 
Internal Drainage Board: Councillors Jacky Smith, Auger, Cosham, Howard, 

Dilks and Broughton. All nominations received a seconder. 
 

It was proposed and seconded that Council Procedure Rule 13 (xiv) be 
suspended for voting on this nomination only. This would mean using an 
alternative to the electronic voting system. This was put to the vote and 

carried. 
 

A proposal was made that all nominees should provide the Council with a 
30-second summary detailing the skills that made them suitable for the 

role, particularly as there were a large number of new members. This was 
seconded. On being put to the vote, this was lost. 
 

One Member suggested that all nominees should stand up so that all 
Councillors could see who they were before they voted. It was further 

proposed: 
 
“that when members are elected to a PDG and/or outside bodies, the 

member stands and is identified, particularly at the beginning of a term and 
that this is added to the Constitution.” The proposal was seconded. 

 
A further amendment was made with reference to the district council’s 
appointment of representatives to outside bodies:  

 
“That: 

 
1. The Constitution Committee should look at the process of selection 
2. Councillors maintain a public record of attendance 

3. Where councillors attend meetings that they produce a report which 
is then submitted to the relevant PDG for consideration/agree 

appropriate action if required.” 
 
This amendment was seconded. 

 
Under Council Procedure Rule 14.10(iv) it was proposed and seconded “that 
the question be now put”. In accordance with council procedure rule 

14.11(iii) the Chairman prepared to move to a vote on this motion. 
 

Councillor Broughton stated he would withdraw from the running to avoid 



 

8 

the politicisation of the appointments. Councillor Dilks also withdrew. This 
left the appropriate number of nominees to fill all the vacancies on the body 

and a vote was taken (by hand) to confirm their appointment. Councillors 
Auger, Jacky Smith, Cosham and Howard were appointed by a majority 

vote. 
 
NOTE: The Chairman of the Constitution Committee agreed to consider the 

proposed amendments at a future meeting of the Constitution Committee. 
 

15:37-15:53  The meeting adjourned 
 
Deeping St. James United Charities 

 
Officers had clarified that at its meeting on 6 September 2007, the Council 

agreed that “the Council allows only appointments of existing councillors” to 
outside bodies. The nomination for Mrs Precey was withdrawn and 
Councillor Judy Stevens was proposed and seconded as the Council’s 

representative on Deeping St. James United Charities. This was put to the 
vote and carried. 

  
24. QUESTIONS WITHOUT DISCUSSION 

 

 Three questions had been received and referred to the relevant policy 
development group for a response. 
 

Question 1  
 
To: Cllr Linda Neal, Leader of the Council 

 
From: Councillor Ian Selby 

  
The New Homes Bonus for 2011/12 from the government is anticipated to 
be £665,000 and this money is not ring-fenced, so therefore this council 

can allocate the money as it feels would be most appropriate.  
  

Many of our community organisations for example such as; South Lincs 
Mind, CAB, Community Care for the Elderly and many others have 
struggled immensely due to the current financial climate and the lack of 

grants that have been available to them.  
  
I understand that the Resources PDG will be discussing this issue and in my 

view local community organisations should be offered the opportunity to 
apply to our council for a grant to assist them during these difficult times. 
We should not stand by and watch some of these organisations terminate 

their invaluable activities. 
  

Would the leader of the council be willing to support in principle my 
suggestion of using some of the funds from the New Homes Bonus to 
support some of our community organisations who at this moment in time 

are in urgent need of financial assistance? If this is not possible through the 



 

9 

New Homes Bonus then will the Leader of the Council consider looking at 
other avenues of support for our community organisations?  

  
Referred to the Resources PDG 
 

Question 2 
 

To: Cllr Linda Neal, Leader of the Council 
 
From: Councillor Rob Shorrock 

 
What are the full costs for the delivery of member training, including 

organisation, officer time, travel and then member time and travel, and has 
there been an evaluation of the cost benefits of this approach as against 
the delivery of core member training through an e-learning model? 

 
Referred to the Engagement PDG 
 

Question 3 
 

To: Cllr Linda Neal 
 
From:  Councillor Charmaine Morgan 

  
Is SKDC aware of any projects to be funded through either the European 
Development Fund or European Social Fund requiring match funding, which 

are now at risk due to the inability to provide matched funds as a result of 
cuts? 

 
Referred to the Communities PDG 

  

25. CLOSE OF MEETING 

 

 The meeting was closed at 15:57. 

  
 



Communities Policy Development Group 

28 July 2011 
 

Minutes extract 

 

10. QUESTION REFERRED BY COUNCIL ON 7 JULY 2011 

Question from Councillor Charmaine Morgan 

  

“Is SKDC aware of any projects to be funded through either the European 

Development Fund or European Social Fund requiring match funding, which 

are now at risk due to the inability to provide matched funds as a result of 

cuts?” 

Minutes: 

At its meeting on 7 July 2011, the Council referred one question to the 

Communities PDG: 

  

“Is SKDC aware of any projects to be funded through either the European 

Development Fund or European Social Fund requiring match-funding, which 

are now at risk due to the inability to provide match-funding as a result of 

cuts?” 

  

The Head of Development and Growth advised PDG members that the 

Council was aware of one project that had lost match-funding. The project 

operated across Lincolnshire and was match-funded through Europe and by 

the East Midlands Development Association (EMDA). The EMDA aspect of 

funding for the project was lost and the project was due to end one-year 

earlier than intended. 

  

The PDG were also notified that the Council was in the process of 

submitting a bid for European funding as part of the Grantham Growth Point 

project. If the bid was successful, match-funding had already been 

designated in the district and county council’s budgets. 

  

Members briefly discussed the process of considering questions referred by 

Council. Discussion would be captured in the action notes of the meeting 

and a written reply would be sent to the questioner. There was no 

requirement for the response to be submitted to the Council unless the PDG 

felt it necessary. The group suggested that the response to this question 

should be referred to Council for the information of all Councillors. 

  

Action Point: 

  

Forward the reply to the question referred by Council back to the 

Council to enable all Members to view the response. 

 



Cllr Mike Cook – 2011/12 
Chairman’s Civic Events 7th July to 7th September 2011 

Printed:  8.9.11 

 
Date Ref Organisation and Event Location Chauff 

 

10.7.11 

 

MC16 

 

Lincolnshire County Council 

Civic Service 

 

Lincoln Cathedral followed by 

reception in grounds of Lincoln 
Castle 

 

 

Yes 

 

16.7.11 

 

MC04 

 

RLC 
Cocktail Party, Beating Retreat and 

Curry Supper 
 

 

Prince William of Gloucester 
Barracks, Grantham 

  

 
16.7.11 

 
VC08 

 
Royal Air Force Cranwell 

Anthems in the Park 

 

 
RAF Cranwell 

 

 

17.7.11 

 

MC18 

 

North East Lincs. Council 

Civic Service and Parade 

 

 

Grimsby Minster followed by 

Reception at the Town Hall 

 

 

17.7.11 

 

VC07 

 

North Kesteven District Council 
Civic Service 

 

 

All Saints Church, Ruskington 

 

 

18.7.11 

 

VC05 

 

Bishop Grosseteste 
Degree Ceremony 

 

 

Lincoln Cathedral 

 

 
19.7.11 

 
MC05 

 
Lord Chamberlain 

Royal Garden Party 
 

 
Buckingham Palace, 

London 

 
Yes 

 

24.7.11 

 

MC15 

 

SKDC 

Civic Service 
 

 

St. Wulframs followed by 

reception at Kings School 

 

 
2.8.11 

 
MC19 

 
Gainsborough Town Council 

Twelfth Night 

 

 
Quantum Theatre 

Richmond Park 

 
Yes 

 

9.8.11  

 

MC17 

 

47F (Grantham) Squadron Air 
Training Corps. 

Graduation Parade 

 

 

Triggs Yard, 
Watergate 

 

 
17.8.11 

 
MC21 

 
Civic Society 

Unveiling of Blue Plaque in George 
Centre 

 

 
George Centre 

 

 

20.8.11 

 

MC25A 

 

Grantham Lions Club 

Art Exhibition 
 

 

Guildhall Arts Centre 

 

 
27-

29.8.11 

 
MC22 

 
British Model Flying Association 

British National and Scale 
championships 

 

 
RAF Barkston Heath 

 

 

Agenda Item 6



 Page 1 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 
REPORT OF:    Economic Development Portfolio Holder 
 
REPORT NO: PLA 909  
 
DATE:      8th September 2011  
 

TITLE: 
 

Site Allocation and Policies and Grantham Area 
Action Plan Development Plan Documents: 
Publication and Submission to Secretary of State 

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL: 

Key Decision 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION: 

Cllr Frances Cartwright 
Economic Development Portfolio Holder 

CONTACT OFFICER: Karen Sinclair, Planning Policy & Partnerships Service 
Manager 
01476 406438 k.sinclair@southkesteven.gov.uk 

INITIAL IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
Equality and Diversity 

Carried out and  
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below 
 

Yes 

Full impact assessment 
Required: 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT: 

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Council Report PLA830 dated 5th July 2010 
Cabinet Report PLA835 dated 2nd August 2010  
Cabinet Report PLA848 dated 4th October 2010 
Cabinet Reports PLA866  and PLA867 dated 7th February 
2011 
Cabinet Reports PLA891 and PLA893 dated 4th July 2011 
Cabinet Reports PLA898 and PLA899 dated 1st August 
2011 
Cabinet Report PLA900 dated 1st August 2011 
Cabinet report PLA907 dated 5th September 2011 

 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That: 
 

a) the publication for the receipt of representations relating to the 
Grantham Area Action Plan and Site Allocation and Policies DPDs, 
attached as Appendices A and B, and the changes to the Proposals 
Map, attached as Appendix C, are approved 

b) subject to there being no representations which raise fundamental 
issues on soundness, the Grantham Area Action Plan and Site 

Agenda Item 8



 Page 2 

Allocation and Policies DPDs be submitted to the Secretary of State 
for independent examination 

c) authority is delegated to the Head of Service Development and Growth 
in consultation with the Economic Development Portfolio Holder to 
make any necessary changes to the DPDs associated with publication 
and subsequent processes 

d) representations received after the end of the six week representation 
period are not accepted as duly made 

 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
2.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to publish, for the receipt of 

formal representations, the Site Allocation and Policies (SAP) and Grantham 
Area Action Plan (GAAP) Development Plan Documents (DPDs), followed by 
submission to the Secretary of State for independent Examination. 

 
2.2 The publication of the two DPDs supports the Good for Business and Quality 

Living Priority Themes. 
 
3. DETAILS OF REPORT  
 
3.1 Both the SAP and GAAP DPDs include not only allocated sites for housing, 

employment and other development but also policies which add detail to the 
broad framework provided by the Adopted Core Strategy.  The SAP and the 
GAAP have been developed, therefore, within the parameters set by the 
adopted Core Strategy but they have also built on earlier work undertaken on 
the Housing and Economic DPD and, specifically in the case of the GAAP, that 
associated with Grantham Growth Point projects. 

 
3.2 Both the SAP and GAAP DPDs have over the past two years, been the subject 

of public consultation in respect of potential development sites and draft 
policies.  The comments received in response to these consultations have been 
reported to Cabinet (reports PLA867, 891, 893, 898 and 899) and some 
changes to the DPDs, by way of clarification to respond to issues that were 
raised, approved. 

 
3.3 These previously approved changes have been included in the DPDs attached 

as Appendices A and B.  The opportunity has been taken to ensure any further 
changes that aid clarification and use of the documents, and which do not alter 
already agreed policy approaches, are incorporated.  Attached at Appendix C 
are plans which identify the locations of the housing, employment and other 
policy designations referred to in the two DPDs.  These will be shown on a 
separate Proposals Map that will accompany publication of the Submission 
DPDs. 

 
3.4 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations, 

under Regulation 27, require the final versions of the two DPDs to be published 
and for representations to be invited from residents, parish and town councils, 
statutory consultees and other stakeholders prior to the submission of the DPDs 
for independent examination.  This is not intended as another period of public 
consultation but rather the opportunity for representations to be made as to 
whether the DPDs are considered to be ‘sound’.   



 Page 3 

 
3.5  When publishing the final version of the DPDs they should not require any 

further changes.  However, in light of representations received there may be the 
need to make minor changes, for example in the interests of clarity or accuracy, 
prior to the DPDs being submitted.  In the event that there is a need for such 
changes, delegated authority is sought for the Head of Service Development 
and Growth to make these, following consultation with the Economic 
Development Portfolio Holder.  Such minor changes could be made without 
further consultation and the Inspector, based on the experience of the Core 
Strategy examination, will take these, together with the published DPDs, as the 
starting point for their consideration of the document’s soundness.   

 
3.6 The period for the submission of representations will be six weeks, which it is 

anticipated, subject to approval by Council, will commence in late September.  
In order to ensure the timely submission of the DPDs it is recommended that 
representations received after the end of the six week period are not accepted 
as duly made or submitted to the Inspector for consideration. 

   
3.7 Following the close of the representation period, an analysis of the 

representations will be undertaken to consider whether any fundamental 
matters of soundness have been raised.  If not, then it is anticipated that 
submission of the DPDs to the Secretary of State will take place before the end 
of 2011 (Regulation 30 stage).     

 
3.8 A number of documents will accompany the publication of the DPDs, including: 
 

• Statement of Pre-Submission Consultation 

• Final Sustainability Appraisal Report   

• Changes to the Proposals Map  

• Any other supporting documents relevant to the preparation of the DPDs 
including the technical studies that have been completed 

 
3.9 All those who have previously made representations to earlier stages of the two 

DPDs will be notified of the six week representation period.  Copies of the 
documents will also be made available to relevant statutory consultees, 
including Parish and Town Councils, as well as in the Council’s four offices and 
local libraries and on the website.  It is also a legal requirement for public 
notices to be placed in local newspapers. 

 
4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 The Adopted Core Strategy provides the overarching policy framework for the 

SAP and GAAP DPDs.  If the DPDs do not include relevant policies they will not 
be in conformity with the Core Strategy and could fail to be found sound at 
examination.   

 
4.2 Each of the policies in the DPDs is based upon a Core Strategy policy and has 

provided little scope to consider alternative policy options.  However, this is a 
requirement of the LDF preparation process and has been addressed through 
earlier consultations, in particular through the Issues and Options consultation 
in 2005 and the Housing and Economic DPD consultation in 2006, and through 
the consideration of the responses to the public consultation undertaken on the 



 Page 4 

two DPDs over the past 12 to 18 months.  The allocated sites have been 
identified following assessment, against consistent criteria, of a considerable 
number of alternative sites.  Both DPDs have also been subject to a 
Sustainability Appraisal. 

 
4.3 At examination the DPDs will be tested as to whether they are the most 

appropriate strategy when considered against reasonable alternatives and that 
they have been developed from a robust and credible evidence base. 

 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There will be costs associated with publishing the DPDs and subsequent 

examination which have been accounted for and can be met from the Planning 
Policy and Partnerships Service Budget. 

 
5.2 The Planning Inspectorate has been notified of the intention to submit the DPDs 

for examination and that the Council would expect concurrent examinations to 
be held.  It is expected that this would result in some cost savings i.e. through 
the employment of a single Programme Officer, but the Inspectorate have yet to 
confirm that concurrent examinations are feasible. 

 
6. RISK AND MITIGATION  
 
6.1 There are risks that the DPDs may be considered unsound by the Inspector.  

However, the DPDs are based on an extensive evidence base and wide 
ranging consultation which should minimise this risk.  In the event that the 
Inspector has concerns regarding the two DPDs then they are likely to raise 
these with the Council at the earliest opportunity and provide the Council with 
the opportunity to address the issues identified prior to proceeding to the 
hearings stage of the examination or issuing their report. 

 
7. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 
7.1 A service Equality Impact Assessment has recently been completed and issues 

arising from this have been taken into account in finalising the DPDs. 
 
8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 As the DPDs contain strategic policies there are considered to be no direct 

crime and disorder implications.  The application of the policies to individual 
development proposals may, however, give rise to crime and disorder issues at 
which time the implications of these or the use of any mitigation measures 
necessary would need to be assessed. 

 
9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES 
 
9.1 All costs associated with the development of the Local Development Framework 

can be met from within existing budgets supported by the monies received from 
the Housing and Planning Delivery Grant award. 

 



 Page 5 

 
10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 
10.1 The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 

2004 (Regulation 27(3)) require the Local Planning Authority to consider any 
representation made as part of “pre-submission consultation” prior to 
submission of the relevant Development Plan Document to the Secretary of 
State.  This report, together with the attached schedules, is made to Council to 
obtain approval of Council for the documents referred to before publishing them 
for receipt of representations and submission for independent examination by 
the Inspector to satisfy this regulation. The Inspectors report will ,under current 
regulations, be a binding report for adoption by the Council. 

 
11.     APPENDICES: 
 
 Appendix A Submission Grantham Area Action Plan  
 Appendix B Submission Site Allocation and Policies DPD  

Appendix C Proposed Housing, Employment and other Policy Designations to 
be included on Proposals Map 













































































































































































































K E
E

E
V

N

L
I

I

TC
R

I

D

T
T

U

U

C

H

T

S

S
O

OC

N

S

Alternative formats

South Kesteven has a rich and diverse culture - a community made up of people from
different cultures, with differing backgrounds, beliefs and experiences. This diversity is one
of the things that make South Kesteven such a great place to live and work.

To ensure all residents of South Kesteven have access to our information material, our
information is available in a range of different languages and formats, including large print,
Braille, audio tape and computer disc.

To request a document in a specific language or format, you can ring us or email us:

            01476 406127                                      communications@southkesteven.gov.uk

Large print, Braille, audio tape or computer disc
This information can be made available in large print, Braille, on audio
tape or computer disc. If you, or someone you know, might benefit from
this service, please contact us.

































































































































































Page No.1 

 

APPENDIX C: PROPOSED HOUSING, EMPLOYMENT AND OTHER POLICY DESIGNATIONS TO BE INCLUDED ON PROPOSALS MAP 

SITE ALLOCATION AND POLICES DPD 

Policy Ref Location Allocated Use/Policy Designation Page  

no. 

STM 1a Land Adjacent to Kettering Road, Stamford Housing 5 

STM 1b land r/o Belvoir Close Housing 6 

STM 1c/STM 2b Land South of Uffington Road incorporating former sewage works Housing/Employment 7 

STM 1d Stamford AFC, Kettering Road Housing 8 

STM 2a Off Barnack Road, Stamford Employment 9 

STM 3/STM 2c Land between Empingham Road and Tinwell Road Housing/Employment 10 

B1 a Land between Carr Dyke and Meadow Drove, North of Manning Road Employment 11 

B1 b Land south of Tunnel Bank Employment 12 

B1 c Land south of West Road, North of Elsea Park Employment 13 

B1 d In South Fen area, off The Slipe Bourne Employment 14 

B1 e North of Bourne Eau, East of Carr Dyke Employment 15 

DE 1a Land to East of Tesco Superstore, Godsey Lane, MD Housing 16 

DE 1b Land at Spalding Road/Broadgate Lane Housing 17 

DE 1c Land West of Linchfield Road Housing 18 

DE 3/DE 2b Land North of Towngate East Housing/Employment 19 

DE 2a East of Northfields Industrial Estate, Market Deep Employment 20 

LSC 1a land west of Chilvers Close & The Drift, Barrowby Housing 21 

LSC 1b Site off Bridge End Road, Colsterworth Housing 22 

LSC 1c land between Bourne Road & Swinstead Road Corby Glen Housing 23 

LSC 1d Land East of Easthorpe Road, Great Gonerby Housing 24 

LSC 1e Adj doctors surgery, Swinehill, Harlaxton Housing 25 

LSC 1f Land at Main Road, Long Bennington Housing 26 

SAP 5 (ExE S1) Gwash Way, Stamford Existing Employment Site to be Protected 27 

SAP 5 (ExE S2) Stamford Business Park Existing Employment Site to be Protected 27 

SAP 5 (ExE S3) North of Uffington Road, Stamford Existing Employment Site to be Protected 27 

SAP 5 (ExE S4) North of Barnack Road, Stamford Existing Employment Site to be Protected 27 



Page No.2 

 

SAP 5 (ExE B1) Pinfold Industrial Estate and north of Spalding Road between Carr Dyke 

and Meadow Drove 

Existing Employment Site to be Protected 28 

SAP 5 (ExE B2) East of Cherry Hold Road between Spalding Road and Bourne Eau Existing Employment Site to be Protected 28 

SAP 5 (ExE B3) West of Cherry Hold Road, Bourne Existing Employment Site to be Protected 28 

SAP 5 (ExE B4) East of Cherry Hold Road and south of Bourne Eau Existing Employment Site to be Protected 28 

SAP 5 (ExE D1) Northfields Industrial Estate Existing Employment Site to be Protected 29 

SAP 5 (ExE D2) Spitfire Way, Market Deeping Existing Employment Site to be Protected 29 

SAP 5 (ExE LSC1) Gonerby Moor, Grantham Existing Employment Site to be Protected 30 

SAP 5 (ExE LSC2)  Land adjacent to A1, Colsterworth Existing Employment Site to be Protected 31 

SAP 5 (ExE LSC3) Long Bennington Business Park Existing Employment Site to be Protected 32 

SAP 5 (ExE LSC4) White Leather Square, Billingborough Existing Employment Site to be Protected 33 

SAP7 Stamford  Town Centre Boundary and Primary and 

Secondary Shopping Frontages 

34 

SAP 7 Bourne Town Centre Boundary and Primary and 

Secondary Shopping Frontages 

35 

SAP 7 Market Deeping Town Centre Boundary and Primary and 

Secondary Shopping Frontages 

36 

 

SAP 9 Bourne  Bourne Core Area 37 

 

GRANTHAM AREA ACTION PLAN 

Policy Ref Location Allocated Use/Policy Designation Page  

no. 

GRAH1 Land north of Dysart Road, Grantham Housing 38 

GRAH2 Stonebridge House, Stonebridge Road, Grantham Housing 38 

GRAH3 North of Peachwood Close, Grantham Housing 38 

NWQ1 Northwest Quadrant Sustainable Urban Extension 38 

SQ1/EM 2(d) Southern Quadrant Sustainable Urban Extension 38 

EM2(a) Land south of Barrowby Road and east of A1, Grantham Employment 39 

EM2 (b) Land at Tollemache Road, Grantham Employment 40 

EM2 (d) Land at Southern Quadrant Employment 41 



Page No.3 

 

EM2 (f) South of Gorse Lane, Grantham Employment 42 

EM 1 (EEP1) Land at Earlesfield Way, Venture Way Existing Employment Site to be Protected 43 

EM 1 (EEP2) Land at Earlesfield along Swingbridge Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 43 

EM 1 (EEP3) Land at Alma Park off Isaac Newton Way Existing Employment Site to be Protected 44 

EM 1 (EEP4) Land at the Junction of Dysart Road and Kempton Way Existing Employment Site to be Protected 45 

EM 1 (EEP5) Land adjacent to Padleys, Gonerby Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 46 

EM 1 (EEP6) Auto Rental Car Wash, Harlaxton Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 45 

EM 1 (EEP7) London Road Industrial Estate Existing Employment Site to be Protected 47 

EM 1 (EEP8) Land north of Dysart Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 45 

EM 1 (EEP9) Factory at north end of Trent Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 43 

EM 1 (EEP10) Anglia Recycling, Springfield Road Existing Employment Site to be Protected 47 

EM 1 (EEP11)  Existing Employment Site to be Protected 45 

EM 1 (EEP12) Former School, Launder Terrace Existing Employment Site to be Protected 47 

EM 1 (EEP13) Inner Street Existing Employment Site to be Protected 47 

SA1/EM 2(c) Station Approach Mixed Use Development 48 

WP1 Wharf Place Mixed Use Development 48 

GF1 Greyfriars  Mixed Use Development 48 

CB1/EM 2(e) Canal Basin Mixed Use Development 48 

RT1 Watergate & Elmer Street South Town Centre Uses 48 

TOC 1 Grantham Town Centre Boundary and Primary and 

Secondary Shopping Frontages 

49 

AT1 Grantham Allotments 50 

 

  



Page No.4 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN LOCAL PLAN: ALLOCATIONS AND POLICY DESIGNATIONS TO BE REMOVED FROM PROPOSALS MAP 

Housing Allocations (Policy H2.5, H2.10, H3.10, H3.14) 

Employment Allocations (Policy E2.2, E2.3, E7.3, E7.6, E7.8, E7.9) 

Policy S1 (Town Centre Shopping Areas) 

Policy S3 (Primary Town Centre Shopping Streets) 

Policy H12 (Change of Use Residential Properties) 

REC9 (Grantham Canal) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page No.5 

 

STM 1a 

 



Page No.6 

 

STM 1b 

 



Page No.7 

 

STM 1c/STM 2b 

 



Page No.8 

 

STM 1d 

 



Page No.9 

 

STM 2a 

 



Page No.10 

 

STM 3/STM 2c 

 



Page No.11 

 

B1 a 

 



Page No.12 

 

B1 b 

 



Page No.13 

 

B1 c 

 



Page No.14 

 

B1 d 

 



Page No.15 

 

B1 e 

 



Page No.16 

 

DE 1a 

 



Page No.17 

 

DE 1b 

 



Page No.18 

 

DE 1c 

 



Page No.19 

 

DE 3/DE 2b 

 



Page No.20 

 

DE 2a 

 



Page No.21 

 

LSC 1a 

 



Page No.22 

 

LSC 1b 

 



Page No.23 

 

LSC 1c 

 



Page No.24 

 

LSC 1d 

 



Page No.25 

 

LSC 1e 

 



Page No.26 

 

LSC 1f 



Page No.27 

 

SAP 5 (Stamford) 

 



Page No.28 

 

SAP 5 (Bourne) 

 

 



Page No.29 

 

SAP 5 (Market Deeping) 

 



Page No.30 

 

SAP 5 (Gonerby Moor) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page No.31 

 

SAP 5 (Colsterworth) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.32 

 

SAP 5 (Long Bennington) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



Page No.33 

 

SAP 5 (Billingborough) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.34 

 

SAP 7 (Stamford) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.35 

 

SAP 7 (Bourne) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.36 

 

SAP 7 (Market Deeping & Deeping St James) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.37 

 

SAP 9 (Bourne Core Area) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page No.38 

 

GRAH1, GRAH2, GRAH3, NWQ1, SQ1 

 



Page No.39 

 

EM2 (a)  

 



Page No.40 

 

EM 2b 

 



Page No.41 

 

EM2 (d) 

 



Page No.42 

 

EM 2(f) 

  



Page No.43 

 

EEP1, EEP2, EEP9 

 



Page No.44 

 

EEP 3 

 



Page No.45 

 

EEP4, EEP6, EEP8, EEP11 

 



Page No.46 

 

EEP 5 

 



Page No.47 

 

EEP6, EEP7, EEP10, EEP12, EEP13 

 



Page No.48 

 

SA1/EM 2(c) (Station Approach), WP1 (Wharf Place), GF1 (Greyfriars), CB1/EM 2(e) (Canal Basin), RT1 (Watergate, Elmer Street South) 

  



Page No.49 

 

TOC 1 

 



Page No.50 

 

AT1 

 


	Agenda
	5 Minutes from 7 July 2011
	Communities Policy Development Group - extract

	6 Communications (including Chairman's Announcements)
	8 Site allocation and policies and Grantham Area Action Plan - Development Plan Documents publication and submission to the Secretary of State
	Appendix A Submission Grantham Area Action Plan DPD
	Appendix B Submiission Site Allocation and Policies DPD
	Appendix C Proposed Housing, Employment and Other Policy Designations to be Included on Proposals Map


